
Page 1 of 1

Board of Trustees
University Success Committee

February 19, 2026
Time: 11:00 a.m.

President’s Boardroom, Horace Mann Center
Committee Members: Chair William Reichelt, Vice Chair Tessa Lucey, Secretary Dr. Gloria Williams, 

Melissa Alvarado, Barney Garcia, George Gilmer, Jay Queenin, and Dr. Gloria Williams

A live stream of the meeting for public viewing will also take place at the following link:  https://www.westfield.ma.edu/live

1. Call to Order         Trustee William Reichelt

2. Approval of Minutes                 Trustee William Reichelt
a.  December 18, 2025 meeting minutes

3. Items for Information
a. Review of Committee 'discussion points'        VP Kevin Hearn
b. Update on Student Retention        VP Bill Salka
c. Office of Residence Life Strategic Update        Chris McKenzie Willenbrock

  5.  Adjournment        Trustee William Reichelt

Attachments:
Minutes – 12.18.25
WSU Revised Board Committee Topics
University Success PPT

https://www.westfield.ma.edu/live


Draft waiting on approval Page 1 of 6

Board of Trustees
Advancement, Marketing, and External Relations Committee

Minutes
December 18, 2025, 1:15 p.m.

Loughman Living Room, Scanlon Hall

A live stream of the meeting for public viewing will also take place at the following link:  
https://www.westfield.ma.edu/live

MEMBERS PRESENT: Committee Chair Dr. Gloria Williams, Vice Chair Chris Montemayor, 
Secretary Barney Garcia, Trustee Michael O’Rourke, and Board Chair Ali Salehi, ex-officio 
member

MEMBERS PRESENT REMOTELY: Trustee Jason Queenin

Also present and participating were Westfield State University President, Dr. Linda Thompson, 
Vice President for Institutional Advancement, Lisa McMahon and Kathy Howrigan of Howrigan 
Consulting.

The meeting was called to order at 1:15 p.m. by Committee Chair Dr. Gloria Williams and it was 
announced that the meeting was being livestreamed and recorded.

MOTION made by Trustee O’Rourke, seconded by Trustee Montemayor to approve the minutes 
from the October 21, 2025, meetings. There being no discussion, a roll call was conducted, and the 
Motion passed.

Fundraising/Engagement/Alumni/Metrics
Metrics Report (as of 12/15/2025)

• Strong trajectory with continued year-over-year increases.
• 68% increase in gifts and grants, bringing the total to over $2 million.

o Majority of the $2 million comes from grants.
o Fall appeal saw 37% growth.
o Total ESR ahead by $71,000 with 598 donors, 258 of whom are alumni.

Grants Table
• In FY24, a director of corporate and foundation grants was hired.
• In FY25, closed two grants totaling $85,000.
• In FY26, secured over $1.9 million, projected to exceed $2 million.
• Return on investment of the position is significant.

o $1.9 million came into the foundation, except for $453,000 for math and life science,
which went directly to the university.

https://www.westfield.ma.edu/live


Draft waiting on approval Page 2 of 6

President Linda Thompson’s Scholarship for Student Access and Success
• $1 million was raised with the help of supporters.
• Surpassed the million-dollar mark for the President Linda Thompson Scholarship for student

success and access.
o Scholarship aims to remove barriers and empower students.
o Supports experiential learning opportunities.

Campaign Framework and Budget Proposal
Upcoming Campaign: "Together We Soar"

• Three goals:
o Provide background on past and recent work to assess philanthropic capacity and 

readiness.
o Review findings and recommendations from the planning study.
o Outline next steps and what the board needs to affirm.

• Goal: Clarity on what is needed to pursue the campaign and decisions to position Westfield 
State well.

Kathy Howrigan's Presentation
• Comprehensive inputs for recommendations included:

o Deep dive into previous giving and prospect data.
o Interviews with stakeholders.
o Assessment of staff capacity and internal mechanisms.
o Modeling of potential revenue during a campaign.

Interview Findings
• General positive sentiment about Westfield State.

o "It's time. People are waiting to be asked."
• Confidence in the President's leadership is a key indicator of success.
• Desire for more clarity and sharper focus on fundraising priorities.
• Expectation of disciplined and consistent execution.
• Desire for clearer metrics and impact.

Readiness and Capacity
• There's confidence that Westfield State can be ready for fundraising initiatives, but concerns

exist about the capacity to follow through with ideas and shifting priorities.
• There is a call for stronger advancement infrastructure, in particular deeper depth in terms of

having capacity to go out and cultivate those six and seven figure gifts.
• Many folks would love to be more involved and are eager to be more involved and maybe 

looking for more clarity about how they can effectively help the organization move forward.
Fundraising Potential

• The database contains a lot of money.
• Using conservative methodology, it's estimated that about 2% of the total capacity could be 

captured, amounting to around $20 million.
• This figure only accounts for individual households and excludes grants, corporate support, 

and planned gifts.
• The capacity is concentrated among a relatively small number of high-capacity households.

Prospect Analysis
• There are about 550 prospects that are either highly or moderately likely to make a major 

gift.
• There are a lot of prospects that are already cultivated below the million dollar level.
• There is a challenge above the million dollar level in terms of mathematical exercise.



Draft waiting on approval Page 3 of 6

• To run a campaign, it's necessary to cultivate more people than gifts received, needing to 
cultivate 850 relationships.

Donor Relations Program
• To support the campaign, the donor relations program needs to work.

o A gift officer should be building relationships.
o Someone in-house should write proposals, handle communications, and steward 

donors.
Recommendations

• Pursue a $25 to $30 million campaign over five to seven years.
o Target at least $20 million from individual major gifts.
o Additional support from businesses, planned gifts, and grants is expected.

• The Health and Human Development Building should be the anchor project.
Health and Human Development Building

• Aligns with workforce development and demand.
• It can house different programs and integrated clinical health services.
• It is not only for STEM majors, but also for innovative general-purpose spaces for the entire 

student body, faculty, and staff.
• Offers compelling seven-figure naming opportunities.
• Provides a tangible centerpiece for the campaign's quiet phase.

Campaign Phasing
• First 6-12 months:

o Hire a campaign director to operationalize and finalize plans.
o Build collateral and detail around the building.
o Optimize portfolios.
o Strengthen the system.

• Quiet Phase:
o Focused conversations with the president, VP, leaders, and top prospects.
o Begin working with leadership volunteer structure.

• Public Phase:
o Engage alumni and the broader community.
o Continue functional organizational structure.

Organizational Structure
• President: Chief external champion, leads top-tier relationships.
• Vice President for Institutional Advancement: Strategic lead for the campaign and principal 

gift partner with the president.
• Executive Director: Player-coach for major gift officers and stewardship.
• Campaign Director: Operational lead, go-to person for project status, metrics, prospects, and

gift table.
Campaign Budget

• Total campaign budget: $3.8 million over five years.
o Staffing: $2.5 million.
o Programs and operations: $1.2 to $1.3 million.

• The Foundation is funding the campaign director position.
• Recommended investment from the university: $3.1 million.

Risks of Deferred Investment
• Unrealized major gift potential.
• Slower fundraising.
• Difficulty securing million-dollar gifts.



Draft waiting on approval Page 4 of 6

• Risk of losing donor interest in the building.
• The team will continue to work hard and continue to grow fundraising like it has been, but 

with less tools than they currently have.
Prospectus and Regional Impact

• The prospectus is broad and doesn't specify a fundraising target due to the new Vice 
President, Provost, Deans, and the building project.

• The third pillar of the prospectus focuses on regional impact in health and human 
development and community well-being, initially related to replacing gates.

• The BRIGHT Act presents opportunities for partnerships and community money to support 
health and human development in the region.

Healthcare Access and Opportunities
• There is a lack of primary care providers and facilities in the region, with about a million 

people west of Worcester potentially benefiting from increased services.
• Westfield State University could be a solution for healthcare challenges in the region, 

potentially partnering with Bay State Health.
• The university already provides services, such as allowing helicopters to land on its property

for medical transport.
• Dr. Thompson believes Westfield State can step up and be a leader, differentiating itself 

from other universities.
Campaign Budget and Goals

• The Board is asked to affirm the direction and scale of the $25 to $30 million campaign and 
endorse a multi-year investment framework.

• The Board is not being asked to approve the final budget, but to commit up to $3.1 million 
for the campaign budget, to be refined by the incoming VP of Institutional Advancement.

• The $25 to $30 million target is a starting point and one component of the building project.
• The University has the capacity to exceed this initial goal, especially with corporate and 

business partners.
• Salem State University started with a $25 million campaign and eventually raised $75 

million.
• The previous campaign for Woodward raised $2 million, while the current staff raises $2.5 

million over five years.
Campaign Structure and Potential

• The recommendations are structured around Westfield State University embarking on its 
first strategic visionary campaign.

• Board Chair Salehi believes that with the right investments, the university can raise $20 
million from individuals, possibly more with a structured approach, and even more from 
grants and other sources.

Importance of Leadership and Timing
• The University has suffered from a lack of steady leadership in the past.
• The current president has become the face of the University locally, statewide, and 

nationally.
• Board Chair Salehi believes that now is the right time to act and that it would be "short 

sighted" not to support the effort.
Staffing and Building Considerations

• There are concerns about staffing and bandwidth, especially with upcoming transitions.
• The new Vice President of Institutional Advancement should have experience in successful 

campaigns.



Draft waiting on approval Page 5 of 6

• Trustee Alvarado believes the building will cost over $100 million, and state revenues may 
be available to cover a large portion of the cost.

Investment and Future Growth
• Investing up to $3.1 million over five years from reserves is a wise decision to invest in the 

future.
• Buildings are attractive to philanthropists, and the new building can be the focal point of the 

capital campaign.
• The goal is not just to raise money but to build internal capacity and relationships for future 

campaigns.

Items for Action

MOTION made by Trustee Garcia, seconded by Trustee O’Rourke, The Advancement, Marketing, 
and External Relations Committee recommends approval to the full Board: To affirm the campaign 
direction and scale, and commit up to $3.1 million for a multi-year (5+ years) campaign budget to 
be refined by the next Vice President of Institutional Advancement. There being no discussion, a 
roll call was conducted, Motion passed unanimously.

Tina Bones
• Over 35 years at Westfield State University, cornerstone of Human Resources.
• Started as payroll clerk, advanced to benefits manager.
• Provided support for faculty/staff, deep understanding of policies.
• Legacy defined by commitment to service and relationships.

Janet Garcia
• 20 years at Westfield State University, innovation and leadership.
• First director of marketing, laid foundation for brand identity.
• Strategic social media engagement, professional photography, and effective website.
• Two-time alum of Westfield State University.

MOTION made by Trustee Queenin, seconded by Trustee Montemayor, the Advancement, 
Marketing, and External Relations Committee recommends approval to the full Board: To approve 
the granting of staff emeriti status, effective December 18, 2025, to the following individuals:
Louisa (Tina) Bonés and Janet Garcia. There being no discussion, a roll call was conducted, Motion
passed unanimously.

No further discussion,

MOTION made by Trustee O’Rourke, seconded by Trustee Montemayor, to adjourn the meeting. 
There being no discussion, a roll call was conducted, Motion passed unanimously.

Meeting adjourned at 2:15 PM.

Attachments: 
a. Draft Minutes of October 21, 2025
b. Advancement Additional PowerPoint Slides
c. Howrigan Consulting PowerPoint
d. Westfield State Campaign Planning Study Report 



Draft waiting on approval Page 6 of 6

e. Motion – Fundraising Campaign
f. Motion – Staff Emeriti 
g. Staff Emeriti Biographies

Secretary’s Certificate
I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of the approved minutes of the 
Westfield State University Board of Trustees Advancement, Marketing, and External Affairs 
Committee meeting held on December 18, 2025.

___________________________________________                         _____________________
Barney Garcia, Secretary     Date



 NEW BOARD COMMITTEE STRUCTURE & DISCUSSION POINTS

Finance Audit Student Success & Learning University Success Executive

Financials & budgeting Internal audits Academic programs and success Enrollment management Governance
Multi year planning External audits Student life Retention Trustee pool & nominations

Capital planning & facilities Reporting Student Wellness and Safety Faculty success & professional development Legal
Long-term planning Mitigation plans Athletics Strategic marketing campaigns External representation & relations

Investments and reserves Risk management Learning outcomes Institutional research Executive matters
Human resources Strategic plan and KPIs DGCE Accreditation compliance President evaluation

Deferred maintenance After college placement Strategic plan and KPIs Strategic plan and KPIs
Capital campaign Campus engagement

Institutional advancement Data analysis
Strategic plan and KPIs Strategic plan and KPIs



Update on Student Retention

Board of  Trustees
University Success Committee

February 19, 2026



Enrollment Trends within the SU System

5,616

3,854

0

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

6,000

7,000

8,000

9,000

10,000

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Westfield

Bridgewater

Fitchburg

Framingham

Salem

Worcester



Two WSU Responses to Declining Enrollment

• Lower Admission Requirements

• Focus on Student Retention/Persistence 

These Two Responses are often at Odds with Each Other

(Positive correlation – as Admissions requirements go down, it becomes 
more difficult to retain less prepared students) 



Admissions by High School GPA

Admitted Students 2015 - 2024                                

10% 15% 11% 10%

30% 22% 28%
23%

36%

26%

34%

26%

20%

5%

24%

38%
27%

42%

78%

94%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

2015 2024  2015  2024   2015   2024

2.5 or below

2.51 - 3.00

3.01 - 3.50

Above 3.5

Westfield State UMass AmherstOther SUs



Enrollment by High School GPA\

Enrolled Students by High School GPA    

12% 11% 14% 8% 8% 10% 11%
20% 16% 18%

33% 32% 31%
30% 27% 29% 23%

22% 23% 24%

33% 34% 32%
35% 34% 34%

27%
25% 21% 22%

22% 23% 23% 27% 31% 28%
39% 34% 39% 36%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Less than 2.5

2.5 to 2.99

3.0 to 3.49

3.5 and above



Overall First Year Retention
Fall to Fall 

FT, FT Retention 2015 - 2024

77.3%

73.6%

50%

55%

60%

65%

70%

75%

80%

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Westfield

Bridgewater

Fitchburg

Framingham

Salem

Worcester



Retention by High School GPA
Average Fall 2022 – Fall 2024

92.2%

83.7%
80.3%

75.3% 76.1% 75.4%

87.9%

73.7%
67.9%

61.6% 64.5%
60.9%

83.1%

63.1%

54.5%
50.7% 47.7% 47.2%

81.2%

58.4%

48.2% 45.2%
39.1%

34.6%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

First Spring Second Fall Second Spring Third Fall Third Spring Fourth Fall

3.5 and above

3.0 to 3.49

2.5 to 2.99

Less than 2.5



Residential Life: 
Housing That 

Builds Student 
Success

Board of Trustees Presentation

Chris McKenzie Willenbrock, 
Director



The Foundation:
Student 

Development Theory

Every strong house rests on a 
solid foundation. 

For Residential Life, that 
foundation is student 
development theory.



The Framing:
Programs & Living-Learning Communities

Once the foundation is set, we erect the framing — the structure 
that shapes the residential student experience.

What “the framing” includes:

• LLCs: purpose-built beams connecting 
academics, peer networks, and 
engagement.

• Programs: the scaffolding that fills in 
the shape—academic success events, 
wellness, community bonding, equity 
& inclusion, faculty engagement.

• Roommate mediation & community 
standards: the internal reinforcement 
keeping the structure stable.



The Rooms:
Support Inside 

the Halls

Each room in a house serves a 
purpose — just like each layer of 
support inside our residence halls.



The “Utilities”: 
Crisis Response

Invisible but essential: the behind-the-walls 
systems that keep everything working.

Our “utilities” include:

• 24/7 duty coverage

• Coordination with Student Conduct, Counseling, 
University Police, Title IX

• Standardized crisis protocols & procedures

• Follow-up, aftercare, and documentation loops



The Windows: 
Skyfactor Data
Highlights 

Data lets us see what 
students think and feel 
about their experience.



Skyfactor Data 
Highlights:

Student 
Satisfaction, 
Learning, and 
Overall Program 
Effectiveness

2023-24 2024-25

2025-26



Skyfactor
Data 
Highlights:

Satisfaction 
by Hall



Skyfactor 
Data 
Highlights:

Learning by 
Hall



Skyfactor
Data 
Highlights:

Overall 
Program 
Effectiveness 
by Hall



Skyfactor Data 
Highlights:

Areas of Most 
and Least 
Satisfaction



Skyfactor Data Highlights: 
Recommendations for Improvement



Skyfactor Data 
Highlights:

Delta Over 
Time



The 
Renovations: 

Facilities & 
Their Realities

Homes need updates. 

We are upgrading our housing while people are still 
living in it — carefully.



The Mortgage: 
Financial Stewardship 

Every house comes with financial 
responsibilities — and misconceptions.

• Clarifications:
– The historic debt is not the result of 

current Residential Life operations.
– Today, we contribute to financial stability 

through: 
• Revenue generation
• Sustainable occupancy strategies
• Value-driven enhancements to the 

student experience

• Narrative Shift:
From “a department tied to old debt” to “a 
revenue-supporting, community-building, 
student-retention engine.”



The Curb Appeal: 
Promotion & Future 

Direction

Curb appeal draws people to the 
house before they ever step 
inside. For us, this requires 
marketing the value of living on 
campus.



The Lived-In Home:
Chaos & Beauty

HOMES ARE 
MESSY BUT 

MEANINGFUL. 

RESIDENTIAL LIFE 
STAFF ARE THE 

“CHAOS 
COORDINATORS” 
WHO ORGANIZE 
THE MESS INTO 

CRITICAL STUDENT 
DEVELOPMENT.



The Welcome Mat: Q&A 


	Agenda
	Agenda Univesity Success - attachments.docx

	Call to Order
	Approval of Minutes
	Minutes Advancement, Marketing and External Relations Committee  12.18.25.docx

	Items for Information
	Review of Committee 'discussion points'
	WSU Revised Board Committee Topics.xlsx

	Update on Student Retention
	University Success - bill salka presentation.pdf

	Office of Residence Life Strategic Update
	University Success PPT.pdf


	Adjournment

